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0^& ROCKAWAY'S CURIOUS lilSTQR^. • 

M It Is a Tflfe ftf Karly Indian Orantsv Shifting 5ands and 

Endless Litigation. 

<3> 

; A little over two hundred years ago the low 
~ lying heok of land, thftt portion of the south 
side pf • Xong Island; known as Rockaway 

. Neck, -and the smaili point of beach to the 
south and west .and east of! it,, known as 
RockftWay "Beach, was; solely- the^hablt&t"of 
•the red man:-The great bulk of the beach at 
that >thne extended out into the- ocean In a 

;southeasterly \ direction kand there, was little 
Vest' of where the village of Far Rockaway 
'.now stands. 'For many years after the settle*' 
'•ments.of Jamaica' and Hempstead had at­
tained .to ; ft considerable size this tract of 

'beach .was considered of too little value to 
.'merit attention except for purposes of fish­
ings \ '- ... - •.' 

V . The earliest record concerning \be property 
•?j» an.' old^indlaa ";dee$, drawn up October; 6,' 
\1685;:*nd acknowledged October.8,-two days 
• afterward, wherein Tackpowsbaof Madhah's 
.Neck, , & o ^ M JWttle Nock, chief of hts 
tribe, occupying What is . now partly com­
prised ̂ .'within the boundaries of the present 
town of. Flushing and Parnan sachem of 

Vthe\ Rockaways of • RockaWayj: convoyed to 
.John Palmer for fSl 2s. the whole of that 
tract of RockaWay Neck, and beach extend­
ing from a l ine; on the west known 
as Wells' line bisecting the territory at pres­
ent occupied by the village of Far; Rockaway, 
not far front the turnpike, to the! point of the 

.beach on:the west, at the Inlet of Jamaica 
bay, which point of beach was-at that time 
a short'distance west of what Is now known 
as Rockaway Park. Palmer had obtained In 

;"the- September: previous . to the dato of this 
"deed a license from Lieutenant Governor 
'Thomaa Dongan, . the vicegerent of King 
James II,-to-purchasB„"a. small parcel of land 
and,meadows" on the southern sldekoTIibng 
Islaft.'dj-to Queens county, called'by the. name 
of RcKskaWayV This-deed,.>hlch Is recorded 

|'in the-Queehg county clerk's office, was ex­
ecuted'andTIeltYererrtefore^eveo^wltnesseSr 
three-white men and four IndlanB., The fol­
lowing Is a copy of tho original entry of sig­
nature In tho clerk's office, with the marks of 
the Indians. - ••. 

duced a number of wealthy New York men, 
Governor John A; King, R. Howe and others, 
to buy a.traot of his land and ereot the 
Marino pavilion, a fine hotel.- The new;pur­
chasers also formed a new turnpike company, 
under." the special act • of - the.'.? legis­
lature, called the . Jamaica, and Rock­
away Turnpike company. They- built 
'a regular shells road across the meadows, 
thus saving a distance of several miles be­
tween the city and the beach. The corner­
stone of the~building was lald-Junel, 1830, 
with appropriate ceremonies. 'Far Rockaway 
had long been celebrated • as a fashionable 
Watering olace, having been annually visited 
by thousands In pursuit of pure air, yet the 
houses on the.beach were, small•-,or roughly 
built ^unpretentious affairs, Thompson's hls-
tory'df Long Island, published in 1839, eon-
talnsthe following alluslon,-to the now Marine 
pavilion. ' 

It U a large and splendid edlHce standing, upon 
the margin of "the Atlantic, and has hitherto been 
kept in a »tyl« hot excelled by. any hotel in.the 
Union. The main building l».230s feet front with 
wings, one of.which is seve'nty-flve and the other 
forty-five; feet long. The peristyles are of the 
Ddrlo order, the plana being 233 feet In length 
by 20 In width. "The sleeping apartments number 
160. The - dlnlngroom is eighty feet long and the 
drawing, room fifty. It was erected by an-asso-
clation of gentlemen of the city.Of New York,.the 
cost, 'Including . the land and standing furniture. 
$43,000, and was. sold to the present owners, Ste­
phen ' Whitney and Charles A.: Davis, for $30,000 
In May, 1838. The atmosphere here Is fresh, cool 
and delightful; Invalids soon find themselves bene-
flted, and all experience fresh Inspiration and in­
creased vigor by repeated plunges In the ocean. 
One of the best private boarding houses near this 
place Is Rook hall, originally built for a family 
residence by the late Dr. Martin. Over one of 
the'fireplaces of the house Is a beautiful painting 
df a child and a dog,.said to have been executed 
on the spot by the great American artist-John 
Singleton Copley, father of Lord Lyndhurst, late 
chancellor' of England. 

; The marine pavilion Was'destroyed by. Are 
about the yearOL868.:,.Up to that time. It was 
one of the most fashionable resorts on the 
Atlantic coast. Ai the tlme.lt was destroyed 
ah Englishman by-the name, of Bainbrldge, a 
very able and popular bonlface, was the land- t,-M,wt 
lord." Its location was on t a e - w e ^ s i a e ^ - t h e f - * ^ * ^ ^ - ^ 
Rockaway turnpike, fronting the ocean, In .tha 
village of Far Rockaway- The whole tract 
came into the possession of Butler Duncan and 

of the western division from 8 to It. The 
village of Arverno-byrthe-Sea extends over 
lots 15 and 16 of the western division and of 
the eastern division and a village of band-
some cottages, .including one by Mr. Wechs-
ler of the late-OrhTbf Wechsler ftAbrabam, 

_aid_^pifters „hajce_J&e.ejx^b^]^^JU?pjit^uXlX. 
Tious'es^costfng <from-'?67000to 'fiO.OOOfesnh-
have been erected at the place and also the 

^hafirtumwa^Ayg^yo^hntftl ,—^ghlnhl four, PVCT 
.175,006.v.:;-? .. •:-:> >-/>-'.• \'':: 
,'::Dr." Brandeth was.the final purchaser of lot 
No. 12 of the Western division, and. he has 
sold off a "number of handsome residences and 
a humberof buttdlng lota. John Kreuscher, 
a purchaser .'of a large portion of No. 13 of the 
same division, has put up a large hotel there 
called Atlantic0?ark house. '• 

Many years ago Aunt Abby Ryder, WldoW of 
Nathaniel Ryder, kept a little hostelry on the 
shore of Jamaica bay. . Hundreds of old 
Brooklyhlteswho used to go over there In 
row beats and sail boats, landed to get", ft' good 
clam chowder." In 1850 Garret Y. W. Eldert 
married Aunt Abby's daughter and erected a 
hotel oh the spot: known as Eldert's pavilion. 
This was on plot No. 2. "" -;.">: % 

In th* year 1857 Michael P. Holland of 
Jamaica bought the eastern , portion of lot 
No. 1, upon which Was <\ a; large hotel 
known .as the. Carhart bouse, and made ex­
tensive improvements thereon, -;.. The house 
was afterward called the Holland house,. Mr* 
Holland died In 1859, before he had a chance 
torecelye any of the'benefits ;of his invest­
ment, but after his death the whole of that 
Section pf the beach received the benefit of 
a boom, and tho widow, Fannie R. Holland, 
sold off it large number of building lots, and 
a large village; has been'>built up. Mrs. Hol­
land also sold off a site for ft school house 
and a Union church. When the New York, 
Woodbaven and Rockaway-Beach railroad was. 
extended, through the beach a station was 
established at Holland's.;" ..•:•"•:'. 

Lots 9, 10. and 11 In the western division 
Iwere purchased' by Remington Vernam. ', 

Lot 8 was purchased by Lewis K. Dodge, 
who-sold to various parlies. Dr. Brandeth, 
Phtlo T. Clees and others. . ; . . ; 
, Lots 7 and the larger part of 6 were finally 

purohased^by a Mr. Harper and Garret V..W. 
Eldert, and were sold out In private plots 

Lots 4 and 5, and a small part of 6, are 
comprised In the section now known as 
Oakley park, named after Senator James M. 
Oakley, and they were conveyed to Alfrlca 
S. Hatch, of the firm of Flsk & Hatch, the 
New."york bankers. " \ . . 

Lot'3 was.purchased by Louis Hammlll. 
Lot 2,.known as Ryder's tract,.was purch­

ased by Benjamin Ryder at a foreclosure 
sale years ago for $2,000. This whole tract 
was afterward conveyed by film to Garret 

the title of tho state and as to its claims upon 
these lands. .The expense .of these.pi?oceedlngs' 
amounted- to J10.000 and Mr. Atirlll was com­
pelled to pay to the state $30,000 to secure 
the piece of land which the state obtained lu 
1812 for $100. As thW'tand was situated at the 

_gj»1trt prthg- fe^<?b/*B,nd assail subseqjuent ac­
cretionsto the" westwiird^ were' held'to"belong* 
to the owner of this tract the bargain^ was 
consider ad. A good one for Attrlll. ' ' - - . •"•' 

TheTitre oriWj'lind'WfrleB-'wlthrlffTr-por-
tIon of the title to ail the great stretch of the 
new.beach to the,Westward; now worth mill­
ions of dollars. .-Much hew beach was formed 
to the southward of. the. United States i and 
this was claimed with its accretion as part of 
l o t N o . 1 . •-'" ' • ; : ; ; ' • • ; " '•-;.'-•': ' •-'• -' 

When Nathanier Ryder purchased of Corn-
Well, lot No. I h e gave the latter a mortgage 
of $200 and It Is presumed, that Cornwell 
thought that he was well rid of this traot that 
to-day gives-title, to the wholp western half 
of the beafch, worth several millions of dolr 
lars. He assigned the mortgage to David T, 
Jennings, Who, as tho interest had not been 
paid, fo>ecldsedv.the claim In 1830 and the 
tract Was hid in by Roth^ry Ryder and Henry 
Hewlett for $18L : . \; = >- .-^ y : ." ? 
-vRcfljent; Mott,, -who -obtained « judgment 
against Roihery: Ryder, spld the plot under 
an executlon.ln 1889, and It was purchased by 
Henry-" Hewlett,". Who also purchased other 
large: portions of lot No. 1, which had been 
parted .with and thus, became the" sole owner 
of. all of this.lot, except the Stringham tract, 
how owned by "Mrs. Ward and-Mrs, Judson. 
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hlVdeclsIon^wfti affirmed by the court of ftp-
peals, f??' V . ' ' ' ' . . :'f:""1"';";'~-'. — ••:..:.. 

In 1879 the heirs of Alida M. Littlejohn con­
veyed 140 acres to Henry Y. Attrill. This 
comprised the entire western portion of 

plot No. 1, as far west as the United States 
jorU_ThU was a tract west bXwJDTi^Tjmp-

bis wife, Allda M.v Littlejohn, through Dane. 
This 140 acre tract was known as Rockaway 
Beach pai'k aud-up^m^4iMH<»rapanŷ «HBPPj_ja: 
of Attrlll and Smith, the latter president of 
the Cleveland, Columbus and Indiana Central 
railroad, and others associated with, them, 
built the mammoth and handsome Rockaway 
hotel, a structure 800 feet long, costing over 
* million and ft quarter of dollars, which was 
finished July 11, 1879. On April 1,1880, the 
tract was conveyed by Attrlll tn the Rockaway 
Beach'" Improvement company. 

This hotel proved to be a financial failure 
and tho thousands of workmen who had re­
ceived nothing but a l o t of receiver's certifi­
cates, in pay for tb^lr labor, at one time 
threatened to burn ltnown. It was "With the 
utmost'difficulty they were^sitlsfled. Droxel 
& Morgan bought up a large number of the 
receiver's certificates, and paid oft tho men. ; 

Charles Raht, as executor of Julius C. 
Raht; who held a mortgage of $76,000 on the 
tract assigned, to them by Littlejohn, fore­
closed his claim and the-property.wa* struck 
off at * publtc sale on February 3, 1883, to 
Francis O. Barlow for $175,000. Mr. Barlow 
sold the property to J. Pierrepoht Morgan. 
The hotel building was sold.by Mr. Morgan 

) 

'This deed was also recorde"avOctober 27, 1685, 
in tfie office' of the secretary>af«theprovlrice 
of Now York, signed by J. Spraggr^6e<stary 
of the council of New York. The IndlanXUle 
was merely tor^occupancy; -.: 
• Lieutenant Governor Dopgan Issued a pat 
ent- to- JbhttPalmer-pn November -3, -1685, re-. 

.'coMedln'the archives of the secretary of the, 

. province, Mn which'-he ratified the- Indian 
deed to Palmer; the consideration Was a quit 
rent Of • five bushels of-getrtvwlnter Wheat 

• annually. The next record ofyhe beach Is a 
deed,'- by. which John Palmer fend wife con­
veyed the whole' of RockaWay Beach to.Rlch-
.ard Cornwell, by deed dVeAiAiugust 23, 1687; 
the consideration is defiwd as being "valua­
ble." This deed wasnot recorded until Janu­
ary 9,'16$9.'..'. •. " , 

Richard Cornwell dfed In 1692, bequeathing 
all his property at Rofkaway to his four sons, 
William, Jacob, Thomas and John. This will 
ls'recorded in the surrogate's office of New 
York city, liber 6, page 45. This section of 
the town of Hempstead was all called Rock--
away ht that time; taking its name from the 
tribe of Indians. The name of Far Rockaway. 
was used to distinguish tho beach; from the 
mainland section. Near Rockaway, now 
called East Rockaway, and Far Rockaway 
was so called; because In reaching it a detour 

' of several miles had to be made to the east, 
- around Jamaica bay and the marsh land. 

•The family records state that William had 
a son, Richard, and the latter had two sons, 
named respectively Benjamin and Richard. 
Tho original Richard built the first house on 
the beach somewhere about the year 1690, 
the weatherbosXdrnerag'heTvrr-ourbyrhlnr 
wlth his own ax. This house was remolfed 
In 1833 to make way for the Marine pavilion. 
This old house was. added to from time to 
time as additions came to the families of the 
sons until Its appearance was, similar to that 
shown in the picture printed In these col­
umns.. . 

The wholo property remained tranquil In 
the possession of the Cornwell family until 
1809; of for over 116 years-after the death of 
Richard. Then the heirs.of the tour sons 
partitioned the property by order of the court 
of common pleas of Queens county. 

The whole tract was divided Into two dlvls-
ions known as, First division, the .western sec­
tion of the beach, and Second division, tho 
eastern seotlon. The first section was divid­
ed Into sixteen plots and the second into fif­
teen; all of them as nearly equal In value aa 
It was possible to make thorn, and a dlvlston-
of the marsh land to the north went with the 
division, of tho beach to the same proprietor. 

• Tho allotments of plots were made as follows: 
First division: 
Plots 1, 8. and 16, William Cornwell; 2, Ru-

liff Duryea, Jr.; 3 and 13, Henry Mottj 4 and 14, 
Alice Martin; 5, John Cornaga; 6 and 7, Thom­
as and Rachel Bannister; 9 and 15, John Corn-
well; 10, Nathaniel Ryder for John Mott; 11, 
John Nostrand; 12, James Abrams. 

Second division: 
1, 6 and 14, William Cornwell; 2 and 7, 

John Cornwell; 3, John CornagA; 4 ,«nd B, 
Thoinas and Rachel Bannister; 8, Ntthanlol 
Ryder-for John Mott; 9, John Nostrand; 10, 
James' Abrams; 11 and,15, Henry Mott; 12 and 
13, Alice Martin. . ' 

Tho beach was at this ttmo considered ot lit­
tle value and as late as 18S0 John L. Morton 
bought directly from tho Oornwoll heirs un-
dor the 1809 partition suit Jots No, 0, 10, 11, 12, 
18, 14 and 16 In the eastern division; also tbt> 
wiArsh land north of lots No. 14 and 15, alt 
fdr about $300." •<•? -

At this time the extreme westerly point of 
tho bejeh was 500. feet west of the presont 
tormlhu/i of tho New York and RockAway 
Bench railroad. Since that tlrao tho beach 
has steadily, year after year, received secre­
tions of new land oh tho westf until millions 
of dollars' Vorth of property has been added 
to It. These'.ftCfcretlonB naturally camo to the 
owners of tho extreme west point of the 
beach.a? tho iVtlet moved to tho west, , 

The shlftrn* character of tho beach bus 
been tho cans* ot numerous"law suits -as 
to boundary llrces, and about January, 1878, 
In a oroceedlngV* t(> t u , c - J u » t , c 6 UftrnM,(l 

"~ appointed three eiperlehoed *«rvoy«ra,.lWiTy 
1). Myers of PouRnk"cepMoT*8tnitl*ton Mitch­
ell ot North Hom&stoad sndKr.fA W.'Conklln 
of Jamaica, a com\mI**lon to w a l e tho lino 
of dlvUlon bctwecri the lots. They, met sev­
eral time* and roaMo an actual survey, but 
finally disagreed anfl gave the matter up. 

Finally all tho V*11*"1 u p o n , h e nCRrn 

ftgreed upon a ccrtarin boundary line between 
lot's" So». 1 fcAa2"PfV-tnt>-flr»t~dtvUlon-Of-tha-

• 1S09 partition, bctwlMn Cornell and Rullff 
Duryea, aa a baio li"* < o r flctermlng the 
location ot all the rKoporly en ihe beach. 
The difference* that airoae after that aa to the 
bouhdarlca aroae frorri the different rnethoaa 
employed by the surveyors in making their 
eaat and west diawinctfa. Some declared that 

v the true method wadIto run the line along 
the ocean front, otheiU ran ft lino through 

-. tho middle of the beafh or at right angle* 
to thd ba*o line, and otiets along the Jamajea 
bay aide. Mr Norton Iwa* the first man tor 

was afterward by him cut up into building 
lots, which, are now occupied by the resi­
dences of a iargenumber of wealthy residents, 
At that time the ocean came up to'.the foot of 
the.la.Wn in front of the hotel, and since then 
Hog island has, been formed, creating^ bay 
known as RockaWay bay.'' 

John L. Norton died In 1848, and In 1868 his 
heirs sold; to-the Wave Crest LandTSompany 
and to William Caffrey, Samuel L. BV.Norton 
and-Henry Mott and others'the land lying in 
the front portion,*/ Vave Crest andjthe vil­
lage of Far RookawKy,. lomprlslng part of lot 
No. 11 and the whole of !«ts Nos. 12, 13, Hand 
16. The two sons of SamTMl L. B. Norton-
John ~L/and B. Franklin and George C. after­
ward sold the pieces where Edgmere now 
stands.' Patrick Gleason also purchased about 
forty acres from the same • heirs. The com­
panies mapped out their tracts, ran streets 
through the property and put up' a number, of 
handsome cottages for wealthy New York 
people; and a number of lots were sold, with 
restrictions as t6 the character and slse.of 
buildings to be erected, hone of the buildings 
to cost less than $3,000 each. Much of this 
territory' Is now In the Incorporated limits 
of the villages ot Far Rockaway and Arverne 
and' is occupied by the cottages of ex-Mayor 
Gllroy of New York, Franklin Lord, Elbert H. 
Brlnckerhoff and others. It is the handsomest 
seotlon of Far Rockaway. The'Norton heirs 

The history of plot 1 of the western divi­
sion Is the story of. a wonderful creation 
from'the seft. Going, back to the last cen­
tury In tho time of Our revolutionary ances­
tors, when the British forces occupied the 
present .territory of Brooklyn, after the bat­
tle of Long Island, they set to work a num­
ber of their unemployed engineers and sur­
veyors at making a complete map of the 
west end of Long-Island. From";that map it 
is.learned that the old gut, or Inlet to Ja-
malca>bay, was more than half a mile'east 
of the polnVof theHttlet' as- ltcexisted^at_tha!. 
time of the 1809 partition suit and the ocean 
tides flowed into Jamaica bay through a 
broad deep and unobstructed channel, 
where a large portion of the present beach is 
covered with hills arid Valleys and trees 
•and: vegetation of many kinds. The, tides 
and.currents and the heavy seas formed first 
the long bar; then the heavy southeasterly 
storms' and pounding seas year after year 
forced the shifting sands up Into great ridges 
and hillocks, in some Instances from 25 to 80 
feet aibove the water. In older .sections of 
the beach where the cedars had grown, the 
cedars would hold the sand untll^ finally _the_ 
great-hillocks •"covered'the trees completely 
and When, hr after years, the sand was shifted 
by a powerful; gale of wind from, another 
direction these hills Would be biown almost 
entirely away and In these places the dead 
cedar with their gaunt forms naked to the 
blasts can be.seen scattered over, the beach. 
These, beaches Were added to continually-
and-stretches of land that in .1809. were only 
200 feet-in width from bay to ocean, are now 
half* a; mile, across.; ; • -•' '..".. J' " 
- 'In; a Westerly-. direction .-.they have -ex* 

railroad, filed a judgment ot $99,193.01 against 
Attriii o n A p r U 22, 1886, and another ot $100,-
240.03 on-June 15, 1886. • - - . : _ - _ 

On April 25, 1890, Alfrederlck S. Hatch had 
the property sold by Sheriff Matthew Goldnor 
under an execution to satisfy his judgment of 
H&i££!l**JlbiXi?--50'*- M, -\YtUlf«a..ParltUu. 
for̂ ^ $208,000r 5iPark£Braft"efwa"rd transferred 
the property to Isaac E. Gates of East Orange, 
N- J., as trustee for the creditors of Flsk & 
Hatch-and^Jr-P. Huntington. The widow of 
Henry TrrAttrtitThoIds-ariife,-lntereetila--th» 
property. 

Aaron A. De Grauwy the financial backer of 
Wrfeht. who purchased this section of the 
beach at partition sale, then attempted to 
foreclose his mortgage of $180,000 against the 
property. Attrlll, as a citizen of Baltimore, 
Md., obtained ah order allowing him to have 
the case removed to the United States courts, 
where It is now continued against his estate. 
A hearing;will be given before Judge Wheeler 
in the matter Wednesday next. 

Something About the History of Coney 

Island. 
As the Rockaway beach has made to the 

westward, Barren Island and Coney Island 
have been by the action of the stormy and 
•fickle Atlantic, despoiled of a large portion 
of'their: area. Barren Island- Is to-day but 
two-thirds the area It was when the Dutch 
governors parcelled out this territory in 1645, 
to the original proprietors, and Coney Island 
then extended a mile and a half further south 
than li does to-day. And the Island was at 
that time covered with a good deal of^llve 
timber and shrubbery. The island up tp 
seventy-five' years ago was divided into two 
partsand-att^lnlet-aivlded-the-^eetlons-now 
known as Brighton and Manhattan beaches, 
near where the Marine railway crosses. Men 
living until within a few years past have .re­
lated ho.w In their boyhood days they~ sailed 
through this Inlet. 

Coney^sland was. part of a tract of land- i,.ceeds. 

last season, while on the property'purchased 
last year for $50,000, with a frontage lot 111 
feet on Surf aYenue.ana..running babkj 1,500 
feet to tho old iron pier, the slxtyYTw'o ten-:;: 
ants occupying halt the space pay "a total.-•;. 
rental of $16,800. This year,, too, the steam ,, 
XP.ad.a_to_th,a~liilan(j are, ^nfrnnje^^fea,-!^—~ 
arid sbihewhat wtiSfactoryBltuatlon^Thrbugh"-'; 
out the day, especially On a Sunday or a boll- . 
day, the trolley roads are -.carrying Immense j-'•"-. 
crowds to the beaches;"whicbrthey*ftre 'pow~~'"~ 

-orlc&a—iOL_hiiiTrt1» In thq o y p n l n c , ; yJJ£JjJSa_„ 
steam roads receive the returning tide of pas­
sengers thus kindly furnished them by the . . 
trolley lines. Steim. and electricity make,* ; 
good team. The combination'creates' busl-;: 
ness and business. pays.' The Nassau :: 
line to Sheepshead Bay and-Manhattan car- ;:. 
ribs to that exclusive beach a great crowd, -
which cannot be handled; and Is not wanted 
at that point. The Brighton beach property 
Is the connecting promenade between Man­
hattan and West Brighton, and the public 
has hitherto been provided with a pleasant • j 

walk along an, extended platform. This year" 
the marine railway was put in operation- -
some weeks earlier than usual, before'tb> 
Brighton people could restore the piatforrij. 
removed during the winter..No objection was 
made to visitors walking across the iriterven- -
ing patch of sand to the Brighton bathiug 
pavilion, but the marine road was soon clos­
ed, the fence restored and - communication . 
suspended, in consequence of which the pa­
trons of the Flynn line to Sheepshead Bay^ ' 
who take this route to We3t Brighton,-must"4 
go by the l Manhattan Beach linei througi 
Parkvllle to the Culver depot. ..Sa inuch.for -: 
the latest move to kill the, Flynn Sheeps­
head Bay line as a West Brighton routed Now 
that the fence is up and transit facilities' aire 
off, the Brighton people are willing, to try -

ti^f ĝJ&eriment of^_seajj3n.,ginoa-jBtere.mitae:.;. 
with Manhattan, leaving their .opponents : 
free to solve his problem of maintaining th'«-
excluslve charaoter of Manhattan Beach/ de­
spite its 5 cent trolley feeder. Meariwhlle 
the public will watch the comedy of the fence : 

with increasing Interest as the season pro-';':, 

1 

Burr's Map of Rockaway Beach, 
Published'by the State in 1840, With An Addition tbToint of Beach, Showing Its Recent Growth 

-.'• '"•;...-'' to the West. . \. _!,. 

In 1853 Nellie Lewis and Abraham Hewlett 
sold a part ot their father's claim to Samuel 
J. Soper and Samuel'-J. "Sopor's interest was 
conveyed through; subsequent grantees to. 
•Mlch8^^.-Hc41andr--~:v:----~ •" 

Soper on August 20, 1853, conveyed the 
property to John Carhart and James H. Pullls 
and they to Wliilain M. Pullls. In 1854 Car-
hart and Pullls sold the larger portion of their 
purchase to Schenct W. Furman and Furmari 
sold It to John Carhart, He sold two-thirds 
of the whole tract, inbludlhg the western por­
tion, to Charles, G. Covert.:• ,' In 1853 Covert 
convoyed to John M. Johnson and James S. 
RemSefiv both,: parcels; • one':.bounded on the 
west by • the^rilfed •States' lari)lrand. on' the. 

ueast by Btrlrigham aria;th'e.other .tract, east, of 
tended year by year until̂ ^ to-day they, have ..Stringham. I^uis andL Abram Hewlett also 
reached a point nearly ^outh of Coney Island 
and over four miles west of the old Inlet... ' 

In 1809 plot No. 1, which extended from 
the old gut to the new Inlet,- comprised 
about two hurXdred acre's and was • conveyed 
by Richard Cromwell to Nathaniel Ryder for 
$200 and the marsh to the north-went with 

/It It was upon this" plot that the old United 
States blook house was bul|t and the boun­
dary of the United States land seems to -be 
the most definite boundary and a.base line 
from which to compute the division between 
lots 1 and 2 and for all tho other boundaries' 
of the~ beach. - ' " . . . 

In 1814 Nathaniel Ryder conveyed .to the 
United States for the sum of $100 a 
tract of land of about forty or fifty acres 
comprising the westerly point of the beach 
for the building of a block house thereon. 
This land was. afterward purchased by the 
state of New York and acting under the au­
thority of Governor Daniel Tompkins the 
state commissioners paid $100 for the land 

sold -.Remsen ur 1855;ythe';Western ;p6rtlon of 
the tract, .Which- Was left? to them by their 
father, about three hundred1 acres, for $485.50. 
:. Lots 25 feet-by-lOO feet are how selling for 
from.$2,600<)to~$3iOOO-on this-same track, only 
about forty years'ago purchased by Remsen 
for $1.85 ah lacre or 25 cents a lot. • \ 

February 1,1858, James S.' Remsen bought 
out Johnson's undivided half for. $20,000. In 
1863 Remsen conveyed'all this track east of 
the United States tract (excepting only a strip 
1450 feetin width stretchlrig across the beach 
and known as Seaside .park/to Dr. Richard H. 
Thompson, who was at that time health officer 
of New York city. The main consideration 
named was a stipulation' oh the part pf Dr." 
Thompson to build arailroad from East New 
York to Cauarsle and the maintenance of a 
steam ferry route betwefen Canarsie and the 
foot of First street, Seaside landing. In ad­
dition to this he was to pay the sum of $3,000: 

,The railroad was built to Canarsie, and an 

at public auction and was bought by Southard 

which came under the original patent by the 
Dutch governor, Kieft, In 1650, to Lady De­
borah Moody, Sir Henry Moody, Sergeant 
Richard Baxter and James Hubbard and their 
assoclates^comprislng the town of Gravesend. 
This patent was affirmed in 1670 by the En­
glish governor, Lovelace, and reaffirmed In 
1681 by Governor Dongan. Following the 
division of the main land Into thirty-nine 
parcels among the original proprietors the 
middle portion of Coney. Island, composing 
where at present Brighton beach, W. A. 
Engeman's and the race track, are now 
located, was divided into thirty-nine lots 
to go to the proprietors of the Mainland. The 
follows Is a list oftKeso^riWners: 1, Thomas 
Tllton; 2, Samuel Holmes; 3, John Lake; 
4, William Comptbn; .5,'Samuel Splcer; 6 
James Hubbard; 7, John Tllton; 8, John 
Bowne; 9, John Griggs; 10, John Lake; 11, 
Barent Juriansen; 12, Obadiah Wllklns; 13, 
Samuel Holmes; 14, Ralph Cardell, 15, John 
Bowne: 16,. Thomas De Layell; 17, John Tll­
ton, jr.; 18, John Cooke; 19, Nicholas Stll-
well; 20, Peter Symson; 21, Richard Stllwell; 
22, John Tllton, jr.; 23, Thomas De Lavell; 
24, Samuel Splcer; 25, Barent Juriansen; 26, 
John Griggs; 27, Samuel Splcer; 28, Charles 
Bridges; 29, Thomas De Lavell; 30, John Lake; 
31, AnnsWUklns; 32, William Williamson; 
33, John Emails; 34, Ralph Cardell; 35, John 
Poland; 36, John Applegate; 37, Samuel 
Holmes; 38, Samuel SpJ?er; 39, William Gould-
ing. All the remainder of the Island where 
Sea Gate and Manhattan beach are now lo­
cated, both the eastern and western section 
of the Island remained as common lands of 
the town from that time down to the time of 

The present season witnesses the advent ot *; 

many new features, while few or no erittiejfc"| 
,are to be made oh the obituary )lst. TbCold^ = 
time fakirs have all returned to resume the.^** 
chase' for nickels and dimes,.and the famillas » 
pandpmonlum of musical sounds -Issuing from V 
the various and varying carrousels Btrlke" the 
e>-e and ear on every hand- with undiminished ;; 
force. A plot in front-of the Sea Beach palace,.... 
600 feet long and 100 feet wide, is. occupied' * 
by the Streets of Cairo, a miniature presents- '-
tlonof life in tho Egyptian capital. :Everf~j:-
evenlng ftt 6 a native priestsounds the call to-•" 
prayer In tones far from musical, whileat all '$-: 
times a subject of the khedlve mounted; oii ,̂ 
a .Eainel outride, pounds furiously^ upon;; g,;, ~: 
drum. The Boyton conrp*any's chutes," coveririg~;';; 
a space of 1,000 feet long and 60 feet wide,. V 
and an automatic race track.on the oid'lfon-.,.-; 
pier, which will be equipped .With Woodeh;.'::; 
horsee, going ten miles, an hour and operated .!•' 
by compressed' air Will furnish a ride d o w n " 
the 700 foot stretch and return." " ;"' 

The Sea Beach palace is crowded with. * ' 
diversity of attractions as of yore. Every day, .-
from 2 to 11 or 12 P. M. a variety perforriaarice -' 
is given from an extended stage for ail corhr: ' 
ers, while other parte of the building are oc­
cupied by-numerous- side^showsr:tbe-7il8t'In^"" 
eluding Bob Ihgersoll at the Gates of. Hell; 
the Devoe graves, In which.bodies Interred-
are provided with an apparatus enabling them 
If alive to signal for rescue, and the Cafe of i : 

Death, a la Robert Macaire, in which, by; the 
use of mirrors, a man in a coffin is'.redric^ 
to a skeleton, and other feats of transforms- •: 
tlon effected. The museum of anatomy la ::: 
another candidate for attention, and, of course,V 

old stern wheeler was' purchased in Phila- tober 26, 1874, the premises were conveyed to 
delphia for the ferry route. Sometimes she | Alonzo B. Wright. Alonzo B. Wright con-

Bros., dealers In second hand materials,: for I the sale to the Manhattan Beach company, I the X ray Is.everywhere. A section Of-the 
$30,000. It Was torn down and carted away 1 about twenty years ago, when this beach was 1 old Iron pier, now occupied by the automatic 
to the old lumber; piles. The land was after­
ward conveyed * to the Rockaway Beach Im­
provement company. The entire tract has 
been laid out in streets, sewered and a large 
number of houses have been erected upon 
them.' -

Rothery Ryder died In 1838 and hiB wife, 
Abby, in 1863. She left as heirs. Matilda, 
wife of Garret V. W, Eldert; Amelia, wife of 
James V. Brown, and sons, Charles, Henry 
Benjamin and Uriah. Matilda died In 1872. 
These heirs, of Rothety, Ryder and .the..other 
heirs of, Nathaniel' Ryder,'.' the father, of 
Rothery, claimed at this time all the western 
portion of the beach, west, of RockaWay park, 
which had been added to the tract by the 
ocean while their father held the 200 acres, 
between the year'1809, when he.purchased of 
Cornwell, and 1830, when Jennings fore--
closed his mortgage. This, new land'had'by 
1872 grown' to'be 610 acres and was not cov­
ered by the Jennings' mortgage. A great 
deal of. new land had-been made to the 
south of the New York state property, which 
tract, according to'the area described In the 
original purchase, noW only occupied the 
northern part of the beach, while the greater 
portion was to the south of the tract, and 
from this the growth of the beach westward 
was all claimed by the helrs_jot-Nathaniel 
R y d e r . * — — , - - - - , . . - . •-.• - ' - , 

Shortly after the death of-Matilda Eldert 
George Durland of Jamaica bought out a num­
ber of the smaller Nathanlal Ryder heirs and 
began a partition suit against the other heirs. 
Edward M. Shepard of Brooklyn was appoint­
ed a referee to sell and at a sale held on Oc 

T ' L A N T t C OCEAN 
SKETCH OF ROCKAWAY BEACH AND MARSH, 

Showing the Dirision Made by the Cornwell Heirs, in the 1809 Partition and the Extensions Showing the Extent of the Beach in 1840 and Its Present Area. 

still'claim all of lot No. 8 and of lots Nos. 10 
and 11, except the portions they have sold to 
the Lancaster company, which built the Edg­
mere hotel, and a fowj other, parcels, Which 
were purchased by wealthy private owners, 
who havo erected.handsome cottages thereon. 

Remington vernam a Now York lawyer, 
takes a great liking to'the beach and having a 
great faith In Its futuro slaeo 1872 has from 
tlrao to time bought from the Cornwell holrs 
or their succesiors lots 1 to 9 of the eastern 
division. Mr. Vernarii has recently disposed of 
tho greater portion of lots 1, 2, 8 and 9. Al­
though tho Norton heir/ sold lot No. 9 to Mr. 
Vernam, there Is a tifiputo between Vernam 
and Norton as to tho oxAct location of all the 
lots between 1 and 9. Norton claims that the 
boundaries of all tho lots oxcept hi* own have 
boon moved over 400 feet to tho eastward of 
their truo lines. 

Mr. .Vornam had from time to time fenced 
in all tho lota of his property west of No. 9 
and had commenced to fonce In that lot In tho 
spring of 1894 when Franklin Norton appeared 
on tho sceno and a dtaputo aroso as to tho 
boundary line between them. Norton toro 
down tho fenco and a anvall building Mr. Ver­
nam had put on the premises, Mr. Vernam 
then ejected him from, tho premises by force 
and the matter went before Justice Georgo W. 
Smith of Far Roekaway, who granted a war­
rant of ejectment against Vcrnanv. Mr. Ver­
nam appoalod to tho county court, but Justice 
QarroUon sustained tho decision of the lower 
court without giving an opinion upon tho 
question of boundaries and title, upon which 
tho auproroo court must decide. An order ot 
affirmance wa» entered In tho Queen* county^ 
oWrVa office, Saturday,.MayM, 1896, .General 
Benjamin' -F..- Traey appeared -tor "V'erham" In" 
the Wit and Johnson & !«Amb for Norton. 
* In Dfrcetfiber last S. Packard of Brooklyn, 
a creditor of Vernara, foreclosed a mortgage 
of $30,000 on lot No. 9 and tho lot wa« told 
to ChaMe* S. Mackentla of Brooklyn. The 
new purchaaor upon examination found that 
Mr, Vernam'* tltlo wa» defective and Jiutico 

-WilmouJkL-Sinlth_uphBl4jalLJhjj_ohlcctIon«j 

recognise the value 
popular lubnrban »ej 
Yorkers *rid Brook] 

nf the beach -«•"..•-.». 
»lda rftiort tor New 
iltes. In 1333 ho in­

to take the property arrd ordVed the referee, 
Henry A. Montort, to refund an paymonu 
made on the property and directed the plain­
tiff at'the *ale, Mr. Packard, to pay to Mac-
kentte teveral hundred dollars coat of aearoh 
ft* to title aird the expan*e» of surveyors-

Mr. Vernam also bought ot the Cornwall 
holrt lota 14, 18 and 16 ot tho western di­
vision and all ot lot 1 ot the marsh except 
that portion purcha*cd by Lowta Hammlll, 
wherA llammlll atatlon of. the Long Island 
railroad l» now located. Thl* marsn lot No. 
1 extends from Beach channel on the west 
along the northern boundary of all tho lot* 

and oxpended "$30 for carriage hire, etc.; 
first deed, release mortgage,- searching rec­
ords, acknowledgment, etc." The bill of 
Adam & Noah-Brown for building the block 
house wis $2,361,65; Benjamin Corrlell was 
paid £10 16s Id for transportation by boat 
and carrying by carts tho gun over the beach. 
Thocommlssloners reported thatastrong block 
house had been built at the entrance to tho 
bay and a single twenty-four pounder mount­
ed upon |t and that this block house had been 
taken charge of by an adequate force of 
United States troops. 

It was stated In tho report that this inlet 
was near tho Brooklyn navy yard; that an 
enemy could land from small boats In Jamaica 
bay and that it was highly Imporxant that this 
section, which was also a refugo for coast­
ing vessels, be protected. j _ ; . 

Tho following Is a list of names borne on 
tMo muster roll of a company of Now York 
*tate Sea Fonclbles, under tho command ot 
Captain Joslah Ingorsoll. from Decerabor 29, 
1814, to March 1, 1815, In tho service of the 
United States, stationed At tho block house 
Docatur: 

Joslah Ingemoll, captain; Imao Walte, ll«ut*n-
antj Dsnlcl t^ger, gunners Qtorge Bass, 'sreat 
gunner; John Arthur, J»hn Bralner, Matthew 
CrahT, Silo* Coleman, Henry ClAaon, William 
Dixon, John FrancU, John Flnneaan, John Qouhl 
Joseph dale, Joshua it. Hall. Jessre Lewis, Charles 
boundes, Adonlah Mansfle-M, Patrick McClulre 
John McQowan, \Vil:iam Phillips, i*«er PAtter-
son. Eilnara Roach, John Smith. Augustus Will-
lams, John Williams, Joseph Wart «nrt Ravia 
Wilson, all seamen; Abraham Fowler, waiter to 
captAlft,; and John Posler, waiter io lieutenant; 
Huah sweet\ey,..surscon'a...m*,l»t - and 
Tx'ftdSn,' jiooior's waiter. Total, 8J. •. Patrlcx 

—ThCold block house was pulled down In 
1818 and part of the material wa» used In the 
ercctToh'OT the tillage Schoolt&im,, iX the *ll-
lago of Far Rockaway, and tho twenty-four 
pound gun was used aa a corner post at the 
Intersection of two of the village streets. 

In 1866 the government gave Aaron A, De-
Grauw tho right to use and to occupy thl* 
property for $1 per year payable tho first day 
of May In eachyear until it should be wanted 

tie releaaod tho purchaser ot hia obligation "hy t̂lrygO'Vernment, when ttio lojnwaw»a-ro~va^ oato tho promise* and remove all building* at 
hi-, own cost arid expunao whon requested to 
do »o by tho government Tho frftnchl»o' wa» 
signed by George 8. Boutwell, secrotary of tho 
treasury, and William W. Belknap, ncereUry 
of war. The title to tho property, however, 
was In tho atato of Now York, who paid the 
$100 for the name. 

An act wa* i'1 • --1 !•:> the *tate loglalature 
which wa» signed by tho governor Juno 18, 
.1887, releasing to Henry Y. Attrlll upon the 
payment to the *t*t« by Attrlll of $20,000 and 
all expense* Incurred by tho controller and at­
torney general In their investigation, «« to 

landed at the pier at the foot of First street 
and sometimes on the beach, if the tide or 
wind wero'too strong to make the other land­
ing. Dr. Thompson .also purchased other 
small pieces, one from Caffrey, known aa the 
Stringham tract, and others lying to the east­
ward of tho piece named, and gave back mort­
gages In part payment for tho tracts pur­
chased. Tho vendors reserved tho cedars 
which were then considered the most valu­
able If not the only valuable part of tho 
property. Dr. Thompson died suddenly in 
November, 1864, leaving a will by which he 
gave all this proporty and property purchased 
In Rockaway park to his daughters, now Mrs. 
Frederick A. Ward of Brooklyn and Mrs. 
William P. Judson of Oswego, and named- De 
Witt C. Littlejohn, then prominent in political 
life aa speaker of the assembly of the state 
of New York, a* his executor and trustee and 
the guardian ot his Children. 

Soon aftor Dr. Thompson died Littlejohn, 
who said ho deemed It unwise to pay tho $3,000 
out of the funds of the estate to complete tho 
putch'aso of Remsen over and above the ferry 
agreement conveyed this very vftluablo prop- i 
erty to a dummy of hts named Francis B. 
Dane, who afterward conveyed it to tho wife 
of Littlejohn. Tho titlo remained in Mrs. Lit­
tlejohn undisturbed for many year*, and after 
her death. In 1872, her children conveyed the 
present ftockawfty park to H. Y. Attrlll, .who, 
with his associates, formed a' corporation and 
built tho great hotel, which proved a financial 
failure. Littlejohn aleo, as administrator of 
hi* wife, «old other portion* of the beach and 
received large rentals therefrom. In 1888 the 
heir* of Dr. Thompson, Mr*. Ward and Mrs. 
Juds9tf,̂ aiWOYorcd that, by tho fraudulent 
transfers of the guardian ana Inistoos'thoyTiad 
been despoiled of tho prorporty. and In an ac­
tion brought by tham againat Do Witt O. I4t-
tlojohn and his children, recovered judgment 
establishing their olatm and title to the entire 
property bought by Dr. Thompson in 1862 
from Remsen. AM of the unimproved por-
tlon*ot the beaoh lying between Holland's and 
90ARld« and'alsSTne" properly went WSoSKldo" 
and known aa Rockaway parte by this Judg­
ment paMod to Mrs. Ward and Mrs, Judson, 
who ftrtfthe present owners* 

Littlejohn, in an action brought while the 
tltlo waa In tils wife, ftgatntt Henry Y. Attrlll, 
claimed that the entire wester* portion of ttm 
borfch, running from tho westerly boundary ht 
Rockaway point to Barren Uland inlet be­
longed to hte wife by accretion, forth* rwuhn 
that there was an oMHnl«-th*t-dlv1dea~lh"& 
beach for many year*, which In the course of 

veyed on August 15, 1879, the whole tract ot 
610 acre3, except two small tracts sold to 
Aaron A. DoGrauw, jr., and a site for a United 
States life saving station for $200,000. Smith 
executed back to Aaron A. DfeGrauw, who was 
Wright's financial backer, a purchase money 
mortgage for $170,000. 

Benjamin Smith, on tho 25th dAy of August, 
1879, conveyed the tract to Henry Y. Attrlll 
for $200,000, who executed a purchaso money 
mortgage of $180,000 to Colonel Aaron A. De-
Grauw, Smith's backer. 

DeWltt C. Littlejohn as executor of his 
wife, aa heretofore noted, claimed the title 
to this tract as being a portion of tho Dr. 

m 

The First White Man's House Built on Rockaway Beach. 

conveyed to the company, or Mr. Cbrbln as 
representative thereof, for $2,000. At the 
time of this sale the Island extended .700 feet 
further into the ocean' than where Brighton 
and Manhattan beach both stand. Manhat­
tan has been protected by its bulkheads and 
jetties. It has made some new land at the 
expense of the "Brighton portion. The Island 
has made some new land to the west. 

The writer ot this article acknowledges 
obligations to Counselors Edward G. Nelson 
and N. Hubbard of Brooklyn and John H. 
Sutphln, county clerk of Queens county, who 
assisted him materially In his researches. 

SSSESSS: •sssosGsssaseK 

CONEY ISLAND OF TO-DAY 

With the season" of 1896 Coney Island en­
ters upon a new era. Five cent fares are 
making It the resort of multitudes compared 
with which the crowds of formor years dwin­
dle into modest proportions. A hundred 
thousand visitors in a single day was form­
erly the high water, mark, which was touched 
only on rare occasions. Now, however, 75,000 
—this was the total for last Sunday—is an 
ordinary flguro, and a one day total of 100,000 
does not call for special comment. Facts 
like these demonstrate tho absurdity of the 
suggestion put forth In some quarters that 
Coney Island Is declining a* a seaside re­
sort. Directly tho opposite i s tho case, and 
railroad managers and seaside proprietors 
and caterers are enthusiastically unanimous 
in the opinion that this Is to be the greatest 
of all seasons at tho beaches. To convey an 
Idea of the amount of tho passenger traffic, 
It is only necessary to say that there are 

View of Unimproved Section of Newer Alado Portion of Beach Showing Sand 
Ridges and Cedars. 

Thompson purchase by execution. The court 
of appeals decided against him. While tho 
oaj»_w**^p«ndln>t-he-bullt_lwajiLt.hr.e.ohM: 
tie* on tho beach and put armed men In them 
to "maintain powesslon ot the premise*. On 
tho 80th ot January, 1880, a steamer conveyed 
200 man httcd by Attrlll, Smith, Wright and 
other defendant* over to tho beach, where they 
made an attack-on tho Llttfajohn guard* and 
routed them'without a battle. They tore down 
the building* and fences and maintained a 
guard over .the premises. Alfrederlck S. 
llat^h of tho banking,<lcm of Jisk_>nd Hatch. 
filed judgment* of $lf.,m and or $164,835.32 in 

-. the Queen* bounty olork'a offtco at Jamaica on 
time had been filled up. : Judge Oilbert doeld- December Si, 188.V against Attrill. Colli* P.' 
cd that there was no merit 1« that claim, and' Huntington, prosldent 4>t,ib© Central Pacific 

I ? j . • ,-

twenty-one way* of getting to and from the 
Island, and West Brighton is tApped by thir-
teen of the whole number. More money Is 
being invested in amusem?nT'enTeri>i'i''es this 
season' than In any preceding three seasons 
put together. So numerous are the points 
of arrival and departure, so great Is tho space 
over which the grand army of visitor* Is 
quickly soattcred, thAt even when tt« 
stream of pleasure seeker* Is at lu-hlgrAsi 
point, the Island 1* not dlsagreeaNy crowded, 

The season ha* witnessed a hJg jump in 

*ort of tenant, the grand aggr/gatc of ren 
tal* paid new exceeding $20O,o*0. Th<i'priv­
ileges let out-on the Doyle Aortlor;*of tha 
Culvor plat*. f«oh $8,000 * / ftgamit $5,000 

race track, Is given up to a dancing pavlllon« 
A tremendous boom to the bread trade ha» 

resulted from the' sandwich clause in the ' 
Raines law, by which the" sale of loaves has 
been greatly augmented. Precisely to' what 
extent the average stomach can stand .the 
sandwich.accompaniment of a beer is a prob­
lem indigestion still unsolved. Everyone-in­
stinctively insists upon, taking and eating 
what has been paid for, but the majority 
would shrink from the task of giving every 
beer he drank a sandwich twin. Only last 
Sunday a visiting bicyclist, who was frequent-: • 
ly dry, took with him every sandwich pur­
chased, until he had accumulatedrhalf a.peck 
of these evidences ot thirst. , - . . * . 

Along the West Brighton .Beach, an extend-
ed line of bathing establishments, provided 
with every requisite of safety, furnish ample 
facilities for. those desirous of taking ft dip 
in the surf on the most crowded days. One of 
the features of this chain of water front at­
tractions, the Doyle pavilion. Is approached 
by a covered walk, and stands upon 1,800 plle3;-
This solid, substantial structure-la amply pro­
vided with seats designed for the accomhiodft--. 
tlon of mothers or nurses with children.. Mr.' 
Doyle, by the way. Is one ot the few surviving' 
nestors of the West End who are counted 
among tho early believers in Coney Island ' 
and its future possibilities. It was. in 1878 
that ho located at tho beach, and a few years 
later 60cured, In conjunction with O. Stuben* 
bord (who is still an Island caterer), a lease 
of the old hotel at tho Culver terminus, Thl* 
building was replaced nine years ago by the 
present larger and more pretentious etructufe. 
Mr. Doylo shares the general confidence thai 
the present season will be a record'hreaker, arid 
points to tho spring foretaste of popularity 
already manifested, as a justification of hkt 
optimistic views. While the cheap fare 
brings a rougher element whoso presence is' 
not desired at the.beach, tho vigorous policy 
adopted by tho police In tho arrest of dis­
orderly persons Is having a pronounced and 
visibly wholesome effect. 'Even-tho Bowery, 
though It still retains that Indescribable com­
pound 'of odors which only a direct contact 
with tho olfactory nerves will enablo the un­
initiated to appreciate, shows a disposition to 
brace up, and hero and there three or four of 
tho little concerns aro being transformed Into 
one, which is put to a moro wholesome uso 
than formerly. 

Tho Iron Bteamboat management have found 
tho 25 cent round trip fAres profitable, so that 
the adequate water route service and conse­
quent liberal patronage keep things lively at 
the new Iron pier and In its vicinity. 

Tho Bcstock Ix>ndon Imitation carrousel*, 
which swell tho number ont ihn .Observatory 
equaro to halt a dozen, are proving a decided 
hit and attracting largo crowds to tho neigh­
borhood,, greatly to tho advantago of overyona 
Interested In tha locality. 

Georgo C. Tllyou, who began lotting Coney , 
Island properly and privileges In 18S0, hai 
now branched out as an amusoment promoter; 
and this season Is expending}$102,000 in'vari-
ou» enterprises calculated t<J. produce a con­
gestion of tfio seaside Invasion In tho vrcTnTty" 
of the strip abujiing on tho old Iron pier. An 
electrlo plant, coating $21,000, will glvo light 
ami fdwef to'a Terr IS "Wheel rjqmpped'with' 
twelvo.cars rising tola height of U0 feet and 
lllumlnatcxV.with 620 electric lights In a muhl-
pllclty of rolorn. Thompson's scenIC railway 
near by rises three tiers, passes through a dark 
tunnel $00 feet long and A« second tunnel, in 
which. Dante's Inferno I* yshown, the -gro> 
tesqtiely hideous conception* of" the Italian 
"pTPtnrTrr^trrertmed-hy^ftrtrW — 
reproduced, past which the rider I* whirled 
vllh broAthles* velocity. Ascents and de­
cent* Mteceed each other rapidly until the end 
of the trip. The promoter* aro banking on a 
heavy business for the ' S&'sd'rV. "Following 
the example t>t Manhattan and Brighton, reg­
ular concert* ara to be given, beginning Juno 
7, by a Soldi orchestra. Tho.Bowery-ieolathe.-

tho humber-of-prlvilegea -rented /nt-trr«Yerr"i°«^hr^.-Tie^Se»T"IS tlie wYdo Walk, where 
camel* and donkeys meat tho %ye and await 
walled the <«xl*tence of thq placo which 
caused such wholesale Sabbath breaking. 

Th old house built for and opened I* 
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